Agenda - Children, Young People and Education

Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 1 - Senedd Marc Wyn Jones

Meeting date: 14 October 2015 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 09.15 0300 200 6565

SeneddCYPE@assembly.wales

09.15 - 09.30 - Private Pre-meeting

1 Introductions, apologies and substitutions
(09.30)

2  Scrutiny of the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty on

the review of the role of the Children's Commissioner
(09.30 - 10.30) (Pages 1 - 77)

Briefing paper from stakeholder - Private paper 1

Briefing paper from stakeholder - Private paper 2

Welsh Government
CYPE(4)-24-15 - Paper 3

Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty Kate
Cassidy, Director for Communities & Tackling Poverty

Elin Gwynedd, Head of Empowering Children & Young People

3 Scrutiny of the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty on
the Report on the compliance with the duty under section 1 of the

Rights of Children and Young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011
(10.30-11.30)

fv' Cynulliad National
/ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



Welsh Government

Lesley Griffiths AM, Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty
Kate Cassidy, Director for Communities & Tackling Poverty

Elin Gwynedd, Head of Empowering Children & Young People

4 Papers to note
(11.30)
Letter from the Minister for Education and Skills - initial draft of a proposed
Additional Learning Needs (ALN) code
(Pages 78 - 79)

CYPE(4)-24-15 - Paper to note 4
Additional Information from Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement
Service for North Wales (GwE) following the meeting on 24 September

(Page 80)
CYPE(4)-24-15 - Paper to note 5
Additional information from the Education achievement Service for South East
Wales (EAS) following the meeting on 16 September

(Page 81)
CYPE(4)-24-15 - Paper to note 6

5 Motion under Standing Order 17.42(vi) and (x) to resolve to

exclude the public from the meeting for the remainder of the

meeting and for the whole of the meeting on 22 October
(11.30)

6 Inquiry into Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESPs) -

Consideration of draft report
(11.30 - 12.00) (Pages 82 - 88)
CYPE(4)-24-15 - Private paper 7



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 27



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 52



CYPE(4)-24-15 - Paper 3

PAPER TO THE CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION COMMITTEE

THE COMPLIANCE REPORT ON THE RIGHTS OF CHILDREN AND YOUNG
PEOPLE (WALES) MEASURE

The Rights of Children and young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011

1. As aresult of the Rights of Children and Young Persons (Wales) Measure 2011,
Ministers must have due regard to the UNCRC when exercising any of their
functions. This is to secure positive outcomes for children and young people, by
creating a culture which respects and upholds children’s rights. Everything we do, as
we implement the Measure, is focussed on better decision-making and better policy-
making for children and young people, resulting in them being able to realise their
potential.

2. On 1 May 2014, the full implementation of the Measure came into effect. This was
accompanied by our revised and strengthened Children’s Rights Scheme, to identify
the arrangements Ministers have in place to ensure they comply with the duty. This
received unanimous cross party support when passed.

3. Section 4 requires the Ministers to publish a [compliance] report, as a minimum
every five years, on how they and the First Minister have complied with the duty
under section 1. We reviewed the compliance reporting cycle and committed to
producing mid-term reports, moving from reporting every 5 years to reporting every
two and a half years. As a result, the second Compliance Report was published on 1
July 2015 and was debated in plenary on 30 June 2015.

Compliance Report

4. The Compliance Report sets out how Ministers have complied with the obligations
under the Measure, how they have put in place the arrangements relating to section
1 of the Measure as set out in the Children’s Rights Scheme 2014, the way in which
the Welsh Government applies the duty to have due regard to the UNCRC generally
and what impact it has had.

5. Ministers also committed to report on the following elements, which are included in
the Compliance Report:

e the training available, both to internally and externally;

e an overview of the work of the Children’s Rights Scheme Implementation Group
and of the Measure Implementation Group;

e the number of Children’s Rights Impact Assessments (CRIAs) undertaken,
reported on a departmental basis;

e the effectiveness of the CRIA process including specific examples; and

e the activities relating to promoting knowledge and understanding of the UNCRC
under section 5 of the Measure.

1
Pack Page 72



6. Whilst | am the portfolio Minister for children and children’s rights, the duty is on all

9.

Ministers. The report reflects this and the examples used are across Ministerial
portfolios and across legislation, policy and programmes. This was to illustrate how
having due regard takes many forms and needs to be flexible to allow for the
breadth and scope of the work of Government. As a result of the Measure being fully
implemented and the due regard duty being applied to all Ministerial functions, there
has been a substantial increase in the number of full CRIA processes having been
undertaken:

Numbers of CRIAs Completed from May 2014 to September 2015: 126

Dept for Education & Skills 38
Dept for Health & Social Services 38
Economy, Science & Transport 4
Finance & Corporate Services 3
Local Government & Communities 25
Natural Resources 18

However, the ‘due regard’ duty can be met in a number of ways. It is not always
straightforward and will not always mean undertaking a CRIA. In addition, the CRIA
process does not necessarily lead to a particular pre-defined outcome. It is possible
the highest quality, most robust and comprehensive CRIA does not change the
findings/outcomes of the decision being made. It may be the process confirms a
decision has no impact or it is broadly positive and the direction of travel does not
need to change. Itis about how decisions are taken and the considerations which
are made to reach a conclusion, not necessarily the conclusion itself.

Our policy on making our CRIAs publically available is a testament to our openness
and transparency and the benefit of constructive engagement with our stakeholders
and interested parties. There have been 3 CRIA newsletters issued to date which
have been well received.

The report also sets out how the Government is utilising all kinds of methods and
avenues to promote children’s rights, including age appropriate resources, internal
and external training, e-learning packages and providing funding both for an
international conference and to establish a children’s rights centre of excellence.
Knowledge and understanding of the UNCRC has an important part to play in
ensuring the rights and obligations they contain are respected. This work is ongoing
on a national and local level.

Resources:

Childrensrights.wales is Welsh Government’s website to promote knowledge and
understanding of the UNCRC. Since January 2015 there have been 26,758 unique visitors.

Twitter (uncrc_wales) — since June 2010 when it was established:

\ Followers Following Posted tweets \
503 240 642

2
Pack Page 73




Hard copy resources - 27,079 have been requested by a number of organisations since
November 2014. These are in addition to those available to download on the
childrensright.wales.

For example:

e afun fact sheet on the UNCRC for younger children (7-11yrs) which, since becoming
available on 14 September 2015, 5300 copies have been requested by organisations
to distribute directly to children and those who work with them.

e 9,690 book bags to be sent out to Flying Start settings and to include two of our
resources on the UNCRC and children’s rights in Wales.

UNCRC training for professionals working with children and young people:

Numbers who have attended face to face training on the UNCRC since Dec 2013:

Sector delivered to: 2013-14 2014-15 Totals
Managerial 2 30 32
Education 18 25 43
Health 31 4 35
Social Services 46 33 79
Youth 9 63 72
Justice 103 28 131
Sports 0 2 2
Early Years & Childcare 79 27 106
Media 7 5 12
Voluntary Sector 0 33 33
Training 0 22 22
Not specified 0 2 2
Total 295 274 569

Numbers undertaken external UNCRC e-learning from December 2012 (available on
childrensrights.wales): 543

UNCRC training for government officials:

Prior to 1 May 2014 over 2000 officials across Welsh Government had undertaken the
previous version of the UNCRC online training. Since then (1 May 2014 to 30 April 2015)
the numbers who have attended face to face training or undertaken the revised online
training is over a 1000. This is in addition to bespoke training for departments and teams
such as Legal Services.

Department Number
Dept for Education & Skills 53
Dept for Health & Social Services 92
Economy, Science & Transport 162
Finance & Corporate Services 76
Local Government & Communities 87
Natural Resources 470
Permanent Secretary 5
Legal Services 3
TOTAL 1148
3

Pack Page 74




10. Delivering effective services leading to better outcomes must also be accompanied
by listening to and engaging with children and young people. The Welsh
Government is absolutely committed to children and young people’s participation
and is providing £1.8 million of funding over 3 years to Children in Wales’ Centre of
Excellence for Children’s Rights, which includes structures to enable thousands of
children and young people to have their opinions heard and influence our work.
Their national independent participation model, Cymru Ifanc / Young Wales, was
launched at the end of March 2015 and young people from all kinds of backgrounds
shape the nature of the work through steering groups. In addition, we continue to
visit Local Authorities to ensure they are implementing their duty to enable the
participation of children and young people under the Children and Families (Wales)
Measure 2010.

11.The compliance report enabled us to capture the actions and progress made, as well
as provide an opportunity to reflect and to consider the lessons learnt with an eye
towards improvements as set out in the report. We continually assess the
effectiveness of what we do and how we do things. The process of reflection will be
informed to a large extent on an independent evaluation of the CRIA process due in
late September 2015.

Independent Review of the Role and Functions of the Children’s Commissioner
for Wales

12.[The independent Review on the Role and Functions of the Children’s Commissioner]
for Waleg was commissioned by the previous Minister for Communities and Tackling
Poverty (MCTP), Jeff Cuthbert AM. The intention of the review was to ensure the
Children’s Commissioner’s role is as clear and as effective as possible for the
benefit of children and young people and the recommendations sought to further
strengthen the Commissioner's valued position.

13.The review was undertaken by Dr Mike Shooter who published the final report on 10
December 2014. He made 40 recommendations which cover appointment, scrutiny
and accountability, efficiency and effectiveness, governance and accountability, and
value for money.

14.0n 15 July, | issued a Written Statement updating members on the review, setting
out how different recommendations relate to different parties, and clearly setting out
the Government’s position on the appointment of the Commissioners.

Recommendations for the Commissioner

15. Fifteen of the Reviews recommendations were operational matters for the Children’s
Commissioner for Wales including improved budget estimates, increased
involvement of children and young people, and consideration to internal staff
structure. | have written to the Commissioner, Professor Holland, and subsequently
met with her, asking her to consider these. The Commissioner has responded in an
open and positive way to the recommendations and is already taking action on a
number of them, with a commitment to consider the remaining recommendations

4
Pack Page 75


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/people-and-communities/people/children-and-young-people/rights/commissioner/review-of-childrens-commissioner/?lang=en

further. Professor Holland has agreed to keep me informed of action taken in
response to these recommendations.

Recommendations for the National Assembly for Wales

16.Two of the recommendations, relating to scrutiny of the Commissioner, were matters
wholly for the National Assembly for Wales and | have written to the Presiding
Officer drawing them to her attention.

Remaining recommendations for government

17. After careful reflection, we are clear the responsibility for the appointment and
funding of the Commissioner should continue to rest with the Welsh Government,
whilst the role of scrutiny and accountability rests with the Assembly. Separating
these two sets of functions safeguards the effective independence of the
Commissioner. The Commissioner is appointed by the First Minister, following fair
and open competition which includes a Panel with cross-party representation and
young people. The Commissioner, like others in public life, is accountable to the
public via the National Assembly’s subject and Public Accounts Committees.

18. Of the remaining recommendations a number of these relate to potential legislation.
Before committing to new legislation, there is a need to look at whether it is
desirable, necessary and practicable. Ministers are conscious of the different roles
and powers of the Children’s Commissioner, Older People’s Commissioner, Welsh
Language Commissioner and the Future Generations Commissioner, which are
specific to their remits, and these should be maintained. We are of the view the
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales should not be included as part of our
considerations. We would require evidence of the need for a single piece of
legislation defining all Commissioners’ roles and purposes, or of the need to amend
existing legislation in order to bring greater consistency. Officials have begun work
to scope and consider the need for, and implications of, new legislation. However,
any new legislation, if considered necessary, would not be possible until the next
Assembly term.

19. Whilst accepting the respective Commissioners needs to be adequately resourced to
fulfil their role, all bodies in receipt of public funding must be able to evidence value
for money. This is all the more pressing given the current financial climate and the
need for greater efficiency. We have offered the Commissioners support, advice and
encouragement in seeking to maximise joint working, and identify economies in
support services and office costs.

20. There are some recommendations which have already been addressed, such as the
involvement of children and young people and Members from all parties in the
appointment process for the Children’s Commissioner, the requirement to give up
existing posts where there is a perceived conflict of interest and a training strategy to
raise awareness of the UNCRC and the Children’s Commissioner amongst
professionals who work with children and young people.

21.The review was commissioned with a view to strengthening the Commissioner’s
office and | am pleased it has enabled open and frank discussion whilst always fully
respecting the independence of the Commissioner.

5
Pack Page 76



CYPE(4)-24-15 - Paper to Note 4

‘/yf/

Age mleWQe\INil:seAm Aﬁ' 1 N ( b
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau b
Minister for Education and Skills J JQ

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref: LF/HL/0804/15

Ann Jones AM

Chair

Children, Young People and Education Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

30 September 2015
Dear Ann,

Children, Young People and Education Committee — Consultation on the draft
Additional Learning Needs and Education Tribunal (Wales) Bill

Following the publication in July of the draft Additional Learning Needs and Education
Tribunal (Wales) Bill for consultation, | am pleased to inform you that | have published today
an initial working draft of a proposed Additional Learning Needs (ALN) Code, alongside an
outline plan for implementation of the proposed new ALN system. | committed in June to
publishing the draft Code and draft implementation plan with a view to supporting the
consultation on the draft Bill. My Written Ministerial Statement refers:

http://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2015/pubdraftalncode/?lang=en

This completes the package of supporting documents for the consultation on the draft Bill.

Although these are working documents, upon which we are not currently consulting, they

will provide those responding to the consultation on the draft Bill with a fuller picture of how

we see the new system operating, and the key principles in respect of implementation. |

hope, therefore, that they will help inform responses to the consultation on the draft Bill and

form the basis of ongoing engagement with stakeholders, as we continue to develop the
Pack Page 78


http://gov.wales/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2015/pubdraftalncode/?lang=en

draft Bill and Code so the next Welsh Government will be in a position to introduce a Bill
early in the next Assembly.

| look forward to reading the Committee’s response to the draft Bill and supporting
documents, and having their continued support in delivering reform to better support
children and young people with additional learning needs.

i

Huw Lewis AC/ AM
Y Gweinidog Addysg a Sgiliau
Minister for Education and Skills

Pack Page 79



I\ NLO

CYPE(4)-24-15 - Paper to Note 5

alaa V4

NOTE 23 - EXIT PACKAGES

The number of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory and other
redundancies are set out in the table below. The cost in the table below reflects the related cost to
the employer rather than the actual value of the payments to the individuals. In 2013/14 all of the
packages listed are for officers who transferred over to GwE and were financed entirely by the
originating authorities (see Note 24).

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)
Exit package
Total cost of
cast band Number of Number of other | Total number of : .
; : : exit packages in
{including compulsory departures exit packages by
: : each band
special redundancies agreed cost band
payments)
200314 200415 | 200013/14 2014015 | 2003414 20014/15 | 2003114 2014715
£ Number Number | Number Number | Mumber MNumber £'oon £' oD
o - 20,000 4 o H o 4 a 56 o
20,001 - 40,000 & o H o L a 158 o
40,001 - 60,000 6 o o Y B it 273 1]
40,001 - 80,000 3 | o H 3 | 199 67
80,001 - | 00,000 | o 0 o | a 25 1]
| 00,001 - 150,000 o o 0 o o a o o
Total 20 | o 1] 20 | T8l 6%

NOTE 24 - EXCEPTIONAL ITEM

The exceptional item in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement {2013/14) indicates
the one-off start up costs for the GwE Joint Committee. The main element are the costs of exit

packages as indicated in Note 23, financed from contributions from each originating authority.
Pack Page 80




Agenda Iltem 4.3

CYPE(4)-24-15 — Paper to Note 6

In response to your emails of the 17! and 29t September 15, please find below the EAS
response to questions posed by the Children Young People and Education Committee.

QUESTION: The committee would be interested to know if you employ outside
organisations or consultants to undertake work on your behalf, can you please include this
in your actions update.

We do commission outside organisations to deliver some services such as skill or
technology audits, or training and development services in areas we do not cover. We
also engage some individual consultants to deliver the Challenge Adviser role, both
through Schools Challenge Cymru and LA schools.

ACTION: EAS Consortium agreed to provide a note on the delivery and evaluation of the
new pathfinder induction programmes which supports newly qualified teachers who are
employed as short term supply teachers.

EAS is delivering, in partnership with Welsh Government, a pilot programme for Newly
Qualified Teacher support based on use of the Host Schools for the Excellence in
Teaching programme. Not all NQTs will access this programme, but we expect around
half of the cohort to be involved in the pilot with the new programme design being applied
to all NQTs in September 2016. A number of NQTs employed as short term supply
teachers will also be given access to the pilot programme, though this number is limited by
the resources being made available to support the programme. In due course we intend
to make elements of the programme available to all NQTs, including all of those employed
as short term supply teachers.

UNASKED QUESTION: Your views on written evidence received from the Catholic
Education Service that regional consortia should adopt a formal protocol outlining their
partnership arrangements with Diocesan Authorities.

During the summer term 2015 the links with each of the Diocesan Directors have been
improved. This strengthening of relationships includes the allocation of the role of
Challenge Adviser with specific responsibility of keeping abreast of developments within
schools with a religious element and attendance at key Faith school events. The
implementation of a structured meeting schedule between each of the Diocesan Directors
and the Assistant Director on a half termly basis has started. Each of the Directors has
been keep abreast of developments within the service and have been consulted on key
documents and processes within their schools, this will continue through the year. The
Challenge Adviser training programme has included training from the Directors to ensure
that all Challenge Advisers are aware of the distinct nature of schools with a religious
elements and the statutory functions that the Diocese have. The Directors will play a key
role in the agreement of National Categorisation alongside the LA Directors of Education
and the agreement of statutory pupil level targets.

Steve Davies

Managing Director / Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr

Education Achievement Service for South East Wales
Gwasanaeth Cyflawni Addysg i Dde Ddwyrain Cymru

Pack Page 81



Ag en d a Ite m 6 By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 82



	Agenda
	2 Scrutiny of the Minister for Communities and Tackling Poverty on the review of the role of the Children's Commissioner
	Private Paper 1
	Private Paper 2
	Paper 3

	4.1 Letter from the Minister for Education and Skills - initial draft of a proposed Additional Learning Needs (ALN) code
	4.2 Additional Information from Regional School Effectiveness and Improvement Service for North Wales (GwE) following the meeting on 24 September
	4.3 Additional information from the Education achievement Service for South East Wales (EAS) following the meeting on 16 September
	6 Inquiry into Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESPs) - Consideration of draft report



